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Preface.

LEVEN years ago, in connection with the Jubilee of the Stone-

laying of our West Lane Methodist Church, Mr. Walter Feather

compiled and published a “‘Fifty Years’ History of the West
Lane Primitive Methodist Church, Keighley.”' It gives some of the
chief land-marks of that history, such as full details, from the
“Keighley News,’’ for the Stone-laying ceremony (pp. 6-11) and
the Opening ceremony (pp. 11-13). There also are to be found
descriptions of the building of the New School, 1901-2 (pp. 18-20),
and various efforts to clear debt. In fact one might roughly sum
up its subject-matter (in no derogatory sense) as ‘‘Buildings and
Bazaars."’

The present ““Sidelights on Sixty Years” sets out with a
different purpose. It reveals glimpses of ordinary people and
everyday events through the years, and takes us behind the scenes
to watch the rehearsals for what was to be played on the stage of
history. It does not endeavour to give a complete and balanced
history of the Church, but sketches of the kind of thing that
happened from year to year.

At the same time, an attempt has been made to give outlines
of the history of various departments of the Church, and complete
lists of the more important Officials. In order to do this, over 500
documents of one kind and another have been examined, as well
as all the minute-books that are preserved of the Quarterly Meeting,
Circuit Committee, Trustees’ Meeting, Leaders’ Meeting, and
Finance Committee.

Yet complete accuracy cannot be guaranteed. Because a num-
ber of the necessary documents are missing, or obscure, in some
cases the writer has had to depend upon human memory, always
a little uncertain in its workings. It may be, therefore, that there
are omissions in the lists of Local Preachers, Class Leaders, or
Sunday School Superintendents, If omissions there are, we arc
confident that they will be few, and we hope that they will be
forgiven. All the offices which any particular worker has held
are not necessarily included in a notice of that worker, but a glance
at the Index will give any other references to him.

The labour entailed in compiling this handbook is dedicated
to the workers past and present at the West Lane Church, in the
hope that it will revive happy memories and inspire to a prosperous

future.
FRANK BAKER.



Early Days.

In tradition, at any rate, the district around West Lane has
contacts with very early Primitive Methodist history. It is said
that Sarah Kirkland, the first woman to be a Primitive Methodist
travelling preacher, preached in the locality of West Lane. Mr.
Arthur Walbank tells of an old official who believed that it was in
a nearby field, if not on the site of the present Church—but there
is no certainty as to the exact whercabouts,

Until 1870 the neighbourhood around the top of West Lane
had no regular means of public worship, so cottage meetings were
started. = The Keighley Primitive Methodist “‘Plan”’ for April to
July, 1870, shows that meetings were being held on alternate
Thursday cvenings at 7-30 at “‘New Town,”’ conducted by the
ministers, Rev. John Milner and Rev. A, C. Hall, in turn.: (The
four names which have been successively used for the West Lane
society are “‘New Town,” “Keighley,” “Mount Street,’” and
“West Lane.”’)  On that same plan are two special announcements
relating to “‘New Town'’ :—

Tea MEETINGS.

‘... New Town, April 18th. Public Meeting with Selections
of Sacred Music after Tea.

Campr MEETING

to commence at One p.m., and conclude with a lovefeast, New
Town, June 5, addressed by Nos. 18, 28, 31, 27.”

The small wooden Chapel built in that year in ““Back West
Turkey Street” was registered for worship on January 20th, 1871,
as No. 19970, by Rev. John Milner, the minister in charge. It
is stated in the Certificate issued, that

‘“The Primitive Methodist Chapel situated at Back West
Turkey Street, Keighley . . . is intended to be used, as heretofore,
and will accordingly be forthwith used as a Place of Meeting for
Religious Worship by a Congregation or Assembly of persons
calling themselves Primitive Methodists.”"

Even official documents of those early days are full of interest,
on account of their quaintness as well as their historical value. The
early Circuit Schedules, for instance, make searching enquiry into
the minister’s character, asking such questions as “Does he smoke
tobacco?’’, ‘‘Is he peaceable?’’, ““Does he preach long sermons?’’
In the 1876 Schedules these queries were greatly modified.

A few extracts from the Circuit Committee. and Quarterly
Meeting minutes of the period 1873-9 will convey something of
the history of the Primitive Methodist Church at Newtown in those
days :
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32 Through the Years : 1935

pointed out, the financial position of the Church was already very
precarious, and this meant an estimated expenditure of well over
£1,000, so that it cannot be wondered that it was not proceeded
with.

1935.

The September Quarterly Meeting resolved ‘‘That the Trustees
of the West Lane Church be asked to approach the Methodist
Chapel Aid Association Limited with the request that for the time
being repayments of the principal of the Loan on the Manse be
waived.”” In view of the hazardous financial situation of th_e
Church this request was kindly agreed to. We hope that this
necessity will soon be a thing of the past.

1936.

Talk of Methodist Union in Keighley had been in the air for
some time, though nothing had come of it; but friendly cvo-ope‘r.apon
continued. In September, the Quarterly Meeting decided "' That
our minister arrange to see the Superintendent Minister of the
Temple Street Circuit with regard to the holding of a joint meefing,
with the Cavendish Street Circuit, the Alice Street Circuit, and our
own Circuit, in connection with the Methodist Church Youth and
Christian Citizenship Movement.”’

* * * *

The Plan for the winter quarter shows two interesting items.
On Wednesday, November 4th, at West Lane, there‘ was a
Religions Sound Film Service at 7-30 p.m. And on Tuesday,
Wednesday, and Saturday, December 15th, 16th and 19th, an
Operetta was given, entitled ‘°Ali Baba.”’

1937.

In the Spring of this year, from February 19th until March
8th, there was a special visit of some Cliff College Evangelists.
Some of the choruses which were then taught are still remembered.

1938.

An extract from the Notice Book for this year will recall a busy
time to the minds of some friends. It was in the announcements for
27th March, and reads :—‘“Will all the friends please attend the
School each night this week to assist in the decoration of the rooms
and the making of general preparations for the Bazaar. J_adles
are requested to bring scissors, needle, and white thread.
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1939.

Many re-arrangements were made, consequent on the declara-
tion of war. It was agreed to close the church building for the
winter, and to hold services in the schoolroom, which was blacked-
out for the purpose, with a small expenditure of money, but a large
expenditure of energy ! After some discussion, a church meeting
agreed to continue the evening services, but to start them at 5-30
instead of 6 o’clock.

1940.

In January of this year died Emma Hudson, formerly Emma
Binns, whose father had been one of the carliest Circuit Stewards,
Trustees, and Class Leaders. In her early days she was a great
worker at the church, and was a member of one of the Mission
Bands.

* # * *

Another Jubilee is celebrated this year by Alderman Thompson
Whitaker, our Senior Circuit Steward. It is 50 years since he was
placed on the Teachers’ Roll at the West Lane Sunday School. A
fine record ! He has served the Church and Circuit in many other
ways, also, as Band of Hope Speaker, Bazaar Secretary, and Choir-
master. He has been the delegate to many District Meetings, and
in 1921 had the honour of being elected as a Conference Representa-
tive. We wish for him and Mrs. Whitaker many more years of
service.
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To-day

CHRISTIAN ENDEAVOUR, Thursdays, at 7-15 p.m.
President : Mrs. M. Gee.
Vice-President : Miss Annice Hutchinson.
Secretary : Miss Marie Dixon.
LADIES' WELCOME HOUR, Tuesdays, at 2-45 p.m.
President : Mrs, ¥. Baker.
Vice-Presidents ;: Mrs. M. Gee and Mrs. H. W, Smith.
Secretary : Miss Dorothy Chew.
CHOIR REHEARSALS on Thursdays, at 8-0 p.m.
Choirmaster : Mr. Robert Taylor.
Organist : Mr. Harry Hopwood.
BADMINTON CLUB, plays on Tuesdays and Fridays, 7—10 p.m.
President : Mr. A. Cousin.
Secretary ; Miss Marie Dixon.
* * #* *®
Missionary Secretary : Mrs. H. W, Smith,
J.-M.A. Secretaries : Misses Marie Dixon and Dorothy Chew.
* ® * *
Property Steward and Trust Treasurer : Mr, T. Bennett.
Trust Secretary : Mr, W. Stokes.
To anyone who reads these words and is unattached to any
Place of Worship, a hearty invitation is extended to join with us
in any of the above meetings.
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